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Question 18:
Reference Page 2 of the BAA: "Offerors may propose solutions for up to a maximum of three study areas."  Does this mean an offerer can submit maximum of 3 separate proposals, one for each study area, with 3 separate budget of maximum 250K each;  or there should be only one proposal dealing with maximum of 3 study areas and with one budget of upto $250K? This is still not clear to me even after reviewing the BAA and the answers given in amendments 1 and 2 several times.
The key question is  - Is an offeror permitted to submit only one proposal with solutions up to 3 study areas, or maximum of 3 proposals, each dealing with one study area?  Is the maximum amount an offeror can request $250K or $750K?


Response 18:
Offerors may submit multiple proposals.  Individual contract award amounts in response to any proposal are limited to not more than $250,000.  
Question 19:

Could you please provide pointers to NASA studies or presentations capturing the current thinking on the most promising ISRU (In Situ Resource Utilization) methods?

Response 19:

The six topic areas that NASA is evaluating do not require data on the latest ISRU methods.
Question 20:
If an institution (offerer) can submit up to 3 proposals, one for each study area; is there a limitation on how many proposals an individual can serve as PI or co-PI? 

Response 20:

No, there are no limitations on the number of proposals for which an individual may serve as PI or co-PI.
Question 21:

Can a proposal be collaboration between individuals from multiple institutions?


Response 21:

Yes, a proposal may be a collaboration between individuals from multiple institutions.  As indicated in the Response to Question 9 (BAA Amendment 001), offerors may submit a teamed BAA response.  The term “offeror” as identified in the solicitation refers to the single corporate entity or university system that will be submitting an offer to the Government, and the proposal limit applies to that single corporate entity or university system. 
Question 22:
If an individual is involved with collaborative proposals with other institutions, is there a limit on the number of proposal he/she can be involved with as PI, Co-PI, or consultant, etc.?
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Response 22:

See responses to Question 20 and Question 21 above.
Question 23:
Page 11 of BAA: "Part 1:  a. Technical Approach (Maximum 10 pages) The offeror shall describe its approach to completing the Technical Requirements specified for the particular topic the offeror is proposing against. "

If a proposal can include solutions for up to 3 study areas, is this 10-page limit for each area (total 30 pages for 3 areas in the proposal), or a proposal should have the total of 10 pages for Technical Approach even if three areas are chosen for the project?

Response 23:

The 10 page limit applies to each proposal, irrespective of the number of study areas covered in the individual proposal.
Question 24:
Please clarify our understanding regarding minimum habitat capability and the 30-day contingency discussed on page 24 of the Lunar Surface Systems Overview briefing from Industry day as discussed below.

Reference:  Page 24, Minimum Functionality Habitation Element - Ground Rules

and Assumptions, Exploration Systems Mission Directorate Lunar Surface

Systems Concepts Study, Lunar Surface Systems Overview, 59 pages total

Specific text in question:

* General


- Element demonstrates ability to support 4 crew for 28 days, and eventually (with growth option) support continuous 4-crew, 180-day surface stays with surge (+4 crew = 8) during a crew change-out


- Element will support a 30-day contingency stay beyond the scheduled mission

Minimum Functionality Habitation Element guidelines say that contingencies are not  included.  However, as written the second bullet under general could be read as an exclusion to the "no-contingency" guideline.  Is the minimum requirement for 4 crew @ 28 days, 4 crew @ 58 days, 4 crew @ [28 days at (nominal minimal function) + 30 additional days (survival mode)], or other?  In the first bullet, it seems clear that the intent is that everything following "eventually" would not be part of the minimum function set but provides guidance for expected growth and expansion.  With the 30 day 
contingency listed as a separate general groundrule, the intent is not clear.  Subsequent bullets on the page seem to indicate the 4@28.  Written clarification is requested.
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Response 24:

The 30-day contingency should be considered part of the minimum functionality. 
Question 25:
Reference Topic 4:  Long-term Lunar Energy Storage Systems Concepts

What is the bus voltage of the system or modules expected to be?

Response 25:

The bus voltage was not specified, but should be considered a variable.  An offerror may make a recommendation in this area.
Question 26:
Reference the below System Requirement outlined in the BAA:

System Requirements:

2 - 5 kW net discharge electric power 

100 - 2000 kWhr net energy storage per module 
TRL 6 by 2015 - 2018 timeframe 

5 - 10 year calendar life 

10,000 - 15,000 hour operational life 

100 - 2000 charge/discharge cycles 

able to withstand high dust, radiation, and widely varying thermal environment 

Questions:

a.  What is the charge/discharge time associated with the 100-2000 charge/discharge cycles?

b.  Is the 5-10 year calendar life to be storage time + use time?

c.  How many 100-2000kWhr modules per Energy Storage System?  This is a large range – are there certain modules that would be 100 KWhr and others that would be 2000KWhr or does the offeror’s design need to take into account the range as a capability.

d.  Is the 10000-15000 hour operational life all charge/discharge times?

Response 26:

a. There is no specified charge/discharge time associated with the 100-2000 charge/discharge cycles.
b.  The calendar life is the total time on the lunar surface, including both idle time and time in use. It does not include storage time before launch.

c. The offeror's design should be capable of the module size range specified. Note that this does not exclude submodules below the specified module level; in other words, a 2000 kWhr module does not  

imply a single battery cell at 2000 kWhr, for example.

d.  Yes, the 10000-15000 hour operational life is all charge/discharge times
Question 27:
The proposal requirements state that the proposal document should have margins of at least one inch on all sides.  Can the proposal contain company logos and reference information (document number, part section number and page numbers) outside of the margins?
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Response 27:
Yes, the proposal may contain company logos and reference information outside of the margins.
Question 28:
The BAA states on page 10, "the separate parts of the proposal should be delivered as separate files".  Does this mean that the Technical Approach/SOW, Key Personnel and Price Proposal parts must be delivered as separate Word and/or Excel files or can it be delivered in a single Word document with separate sections?
Response 28:

All proposal parts may be submitted in MS Word.  A single MS Word file containing all three parts of the proposal would be acceptable.
Question 29: 

On page 3 of the BAA, it states "Technical and design data can be obtained through the password request process found at www.exploration.nasa.gov under the Lunar Surface Systems Concept Studies Discussions link."  When we use this link, we are directed to www.nasa.gov/directorates/esmd/home/index.html?  We were not able to find the Lunar Surface Systems Concept Studies Discussions link nor the Technical and design data.  Can you provide more specific instructions on how to obtain the Technical and design data and password request process?

Response 29:

Technical data provided to date has been posted at this site:  http://www.nasa.gov/directorates/esmd/home/lss_baa_discussion.html
Question 30:
The section on Eligibility states that: 
 

"Any entity proposing for a contract under this BAA must demonstrate their compliance/process for export control following the U.S. Government export control policy in order to be considered for award". 
 

Is this a process to be done during the preparation of the proposal and attached to it, or is it something to be done afterwards if our proposal is considered of interest? Is there any form or checklist we could refer to in order to demonstrate our eligibility?
 

In our case the proposal will be submitted by a team (prime+subcontractor) of 2 different companies belonging to 2 different European countries. Should this procedure be done for both companies, or only for the prime?
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Response 30:

Any foreign entity proposing for a contract under this BAA should include in their proposal a discussion of how they would comply with the requirements of NASA FAR Supplement clause 1852.225-70 Export Licenses.  The requirements of this clause are applicable to all subcontractors and/or team members.  There is no form or checklist available.  
Question 31:
What information should a title page contain? Will it be possible to post a template of the title page, or at least some information what should contain be provided?

Response 31:
The title page should contain only identification information such as proposal title, topic name, proposal part, company name and address, and points of contact.  There is no template available.

Question 32:
Page 10, Section V(a)indicates "Title pages, tables of contents, and tables of figures are excluded from the page count limits specified."  (Note the plural form of the key words).
Does this mean a single proposal can have more than one title page, more than one table of contents, and more than one table of contents?


Response 32:
Each of the 3 proposal parts may contain a title page, a table of figures, and a table of contents.


Question 33:
Is the study area Topic 6 exclusively meant to deal with equipment or instrumentation design and development to move regolith? Or one can submit proposal on topics dealing with techniques and methods for civil engineering activities building road, landing/launch pads, foundation, trenches, and berms; surface stabilization; characterizing regolith behavior and properties for engineering activities; etc.?

Response 33:

There are no restrictions in the BAA regarding the approach that offerors may take in proposing on the Topic areas.
Question 34:
Section VII of the BAA states that Factors 1, 2, 3 are in descending order of importance but does not state the degree of relative importance between them. What are the specific assigned evaluation weights for each of the three factors?
Response 34:

Specific evaluation weights will not be assigned to each of the three factors.
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Question 35:
If a company teams with three different partners, can the company submit three different proposals to cover the same topic area?
Response 35:

Yes, a company may submit three different proposals to cover the same topic area.
Question 36:
What is the specific web address link of the JSC Procurement website and the Lunar Surface Systems Public Data Windchill site that will contain the questions and responses?
Response 36:

Offerors should access the questions and responses (published as Amendments to the BAA) at the following JSC Procurement website: http://procurement.jsc.nasa.gov/lsspo/.
Question 37:
Is it expected that the proposer should include generating requirements as part of the study, and if so to what level, or is it only to develop concepts?
Response 37:

Generating requirements as part of the study is not necessary but would be welcomed.
Question 38:
Page 24 of the Attachment document ESMD Broad Agency Announcement | Lunar Surface Systems Concepts Studies | June 6, 2008 provides ground rules and assumptions for the minimum habitat functionality. Are these to be considered as part of the formal BAA and are these the only ground rules/assumptions that are to be considered in our response? 
Response 38:

These items should be considered a part of the BAA data information package.  These are the only groundrules and assumptions the Government is proposing.  The offeror should identify any other groundrules or assumptions they have identified.  

Question 39:
On the same page 24, it lists a 7000 kg maximum mass constraint. Are there corresponding launch volume and power constraints which also needs to be considered?
Response 39:

The Government is currently using a useable volume of 860 m^3, or roughly 8.8 m dia and 17.2 m tall.  The Government has not identified a maximum power requirement at this time.
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Question 40:
Re: same page 24 of the Reference document cited in question 5); it states:“Element demonstrates ability to support 4 crew for 28 days, and eventually (with growth option) support continuous 4-crew, 180-day surface stays with surge (+4 crew = 8) during a crew change out.”  Question: What is the time duration of a “crew change out” and how is the “surge” integrated into this timeline?
Response 40:

The time duration of the “crew change out” has not been identified by the Government.  The offeror is free to specify that time and then further recommend a concept for dealing with the surge capability.
Question 41:
What assumptions should be made for EVA support - i.e. only minimum to support Lunar suits and their logistics with airlock, or a set of EVA tools (volume and mass of these tools)?
Response 41:

The offeror is free to assume whatever EVA equipment they desire, however the government is asking for the minimum functionality of the module.
Question 42:
What assumptions should be made for communication requirements (direct to earth or through relay, intra-lunar communications, data rates, etc.) and should their requirements for volume, mass and power be included?
Response 42:

The communication requirements should be the minimum functional requirements necessary to support the core module (habitat).
Question 43:
BAA Topic 2, Technical Requirement 5 states the following:
Topic-specific requirements to be addressed in the oral and written Contract Deliverables, specified in paragraph 8 of Section IX, include:

...Providing potential growth options utilizing the concept

 Question:

            There is uncertainty by what is meant by “growth options”.  A more definitive, concrete definition of this requirement is needed.

            Does growth mean: 

1.      Temporal growth: i.e. from 28 days to 45 days?

2.      Living space: i.e. given a minimal living space, how much volume can the habitat expand by

3.      All of the above…plus more?

 

Given a “minimal functional habitat” envelope, what does “growth” from the “minimal” mean from an engineering standpoint.
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Response 43:

Growth is meant to include expansion of functionality beyond the minimum functions.  This can be achieved through multiple options, including, but not limited to: additional modules, outfitting, and hardware enhancements.
Question 44:
Are there constraints on these power storage concepts as far as radiation, or other bi-products?
Response 44:

No, there are no constraints on these power storage concepts as far as radiation, or other bi-products.
Question 45:
Is this study supposed to develop vehicles to move regolith, or use existing vehicle designs being developed by NASA, and provide attachments to those vehicles? If it is the latter, then more detail, including performance specifications, of these vehicles are needed. This would include their capabilities of moving mass and power.
Response 45:

The Government is not assuming any design constraints for this topic.
Question 46:
Also, is it expected that the attachments to these vehicles be both robotically and EVA attachable and releasable?
Response 46:

It is at the offerors discretion that the attachments to these vehicles be both robotically and EVA attachable and releasable since the operations concept has not been defined.
Question 47:
Do the power sources for these regolith handling mechanisms need to be included?
Response 47:
The power source has not been specified by the Government.  It is not required that the offeror specify the source, but it would be good information to include.



